

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

BEFORE THE
ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION
PUBLIC UTILITY REGULAR OPEN MEETING
Wednesday, July 17, 2019
Chicago, Illinois

Met pursuant to notice at 10:30 A.M.,
at 160 North LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois.

PRESENT:

- CARRIE ZALEWSKI, Chairwoman
- BRIEN J. SHEAHAN, Commissioner (telephonically)
- SADZI M. OLIVA, Commissioner
- D. ETHAN KIMBREL, Commissioner
- MARIA BOCANEGRA, Commissioner

SULLIVAN REPORTING COMPANY, by
BRAD BENJAMIN, CSR
LICENSE NO. 084-004805

1 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Good morning.

2 Are we ready to proceed in
3 Springfield?

4 CHIEF CLERK: Yes, we are.

5 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Thank you.

6 Under the Open Meetings Act, I call
7 the July 17th, 2019 Regular Open Meeting to order.
8 Commissioners Bocanegra, Kimbrel and Oliva are here
9 with me in Chicago. We have a quorum. Commissioner
10 Sheahan is seeking to participate by phone.

11 Commissioner Sheahan, are you there?

12 COMMISSIONER SHEAHAN: I am. Thank you.

13 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Great. Are there any
14 objections to allowing Commissioner Sheahan to
15 participate by phone?

16 (No response.)

17 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none,
18 Commissioner Sheahan is granted permission to
19 participate by phone. We have no requests to speak.

20 We will now move on to our Public
21 Utility Agenda. There are edits to the June 12th,
22 2019, Regular Open Meeting Minutes and June 26th,

1 2019, Summer Preparedness Policy Session Minutes.

2 There are no edits to the June 26th, 2019, Regular
3 Open Meeting Minutes.

4 Are there any objections to approving
5 the Minutes as edited?

6 (No response.)

7 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Minutes
8 are approved.

9 We will now move on to our Electric
10 Utilities items. Item E-1 concerns cancellation of
11 certificates of service authority to operate as
12 Agents, Brokers, and Consultants. The Proposed Order
13 cancels the certificates of two companies that merged
14 into Connect Energy, Inc., which already received its
15 certificate earlier.

16 Are there any objections to approving
17 the Proposed Order?

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
20 is approved.

21 Item E-2 concerns Docket 17-0294,
22 which is a customer complaint against ComEd regarding

1 disconnection of electric services. The Proposed
2 Order grants ComEd's Motion for Summary Judgment
3 finding that no genuine issue of material fact
4 precludes judgment as a matter of law.

5 Are there any objections to approving
6 the Proposed Order?

7 (No response.)

8 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
9 is approved.

10 Item E-3 concerns Docket 18-1323,
11 which is a customer complaint against ComEd regarding
12 billing. The Proposed Order denies a complaint
13 finding the complainant did not provide evidence that
14 she paid her past due amount and has not met the
15 burden of proof.

16 Are there any objections to approving
17 the Proposed Order?

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
20 is approved.

21 Item E-4 concerns Docket 18-0906,
22 which is an application for authority to install

1 Distributed Generation Facilities in Illinois. The
2 Proposed Order dismisses the docket finding that the
3 applicant has already been granted the certificate on
4 September 18th, 2014, and that no further Commission
5 action is needed.

6 Are there any objections to approving
7 the Proposed Order?

8 (No response.)

9 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
10 is approved.

11 Items E-5 through E-16 are
12 applications for authority to install a Distributed
13 Generation Facility in Illinois. The Proposed Orders
14 grant their certificates finding the applicants meet
15 these specified requirements.

16 Are there any objections to
17 considering these Orders together and approving the
18 Proposed Orders?

19 (No response.)

20 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
21 are approved.

22 Item E-17 concerns Docket 19-0178,

1 which is an application for authority to install,
2 maintain, and repair electric vehicle charging
3 stations in Illinois.

4 The Proposed Order grants the
5 certificate finding the applicant meets the specified
6 requirements.

7 Are there any objections to approving
8 the Proposed Order?

9 (No response.)

10 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
11 [sic] are approved.

12 Item E-18 through E-21 concerns
13 petitions to protect Petitioners' Annual Reports from
14 disclosure of proprietary information. The Proposed
15 Orders grant the petitions.

16 Are there any objections to
17 considering these Orders together and approving the
18 Proposed Orders?

19 (No response.)

20 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
21 are approved.

22 Item E-22 concerns Docket 19-0584,

1 which is a Joint Petition to approve Release of
2 Ameren's Residential Customers to be served by
3 another electric supplier.

4 The Proposed Order grants the
5 requested customer release.

6 Are there any objections to approving
7 the Proposed Order?

8 (No response.)

9 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
10 are approved.

11 Items E-23 and E-24 concern Dockets
12 19-0685 and 19-0694, which are applications for a
13 license to operate as Retail Electric Agents, Brokers
14 and Consultants in Illinois. The Proposed Orders
15 grant the licenses in finding the applicants meet
16 these specified requirements.

17 Are there any objections to
18 considering these Orders together and approving the
19 Proposed Orders?

20 (No response.)

21 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
22 are approved.

1 Item E-25 through E-27 are petitions
2 to cancel Certificates of Service Authority. The
3 Proposed Orders grant the petitions and cancel these
4 certificates.

5 Are there any objections to
6 considering these Orders together and approving the
7 Proposed Orders?

8 (No response.)

9 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
10 are approved.

11 Items E-28 through E-70 concern
12 applications for authority install Energy Efficiency
13 Measures. The Proposed Orders grant these
14 certificates.

15 Are there any objections to
16 considering these Orders together and approving the
17 Proposed Orders?

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
20 are approved.

21 We will now move on to our Gas items.
22 Item G-1 concerns GRM 19-157, which is Ameren's

1 filing to establish Incremental Gas Meter charge to
2 recover costs of larger meter installation from
3 customers that are installing gas-intense equipment.
4 The Commission Staff recommends not suspending this
5 filing.

6 Are there any objections not
7 suspending the Filing?

8 (No response.)

9 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Filing
10 is not suspended.

11 Item G-2 concerns Docket 16-0197,
12 which is Peoples Gas' Petition for Reconciliation
13 under the Rider QIPs. The Proposed Order approves
14 the Reconciliation based on the stipulation of all
15 parties in these proceedings.

16 Are there any objections to approving
17 the Proposed Order?

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the
20 Proposed Order is approved.

21 Item G-3 and G-4 concerns Dockets
22 18-1680 an 19-0519, which are Joint Motions to

1 Dismiss customer complaints against Peoples Gas. The
2 Proposed Orders grant the Motion to Dismiss the
3 complaints.

4 Are there any objections to
5 considering these Orders together and approving the
6 Proposed Orders?

7 (No response.)

8 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
9 are approved.

10 Item G-5 concerns Docket 19-0232,
11 which is a petition to protect portions of the
12 petitioner's Annual Report from disclosure of
13 proprietary information.

14 The Proposed Order grants the
15 petition.

16 Are there any objections to approving
17 the Proposed Order?

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
20 is approved.

21 Item G-6 concerns Docket 19-0461,
22 which is a petition to cancel the certificate of

1 Alternative Gas Supplier Service Authority. The
2 Proposed Order grants the petition.

3 Are there any objections to approving
4 the Proposed Order?

5 (No response.)

6 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
7 is approved.

8 Moving on to our Telecommunications
9 items. Item T-1 concerns cancellation of mobile radio
10 and paging utilities certificate. The Proposed Order
11 cancels the certificate finding that the company no
12 longer does business and that no cus- -- and has no
13 customers in Illinois.

14 Are there any objections to approving
15 the Proposed Order?

16 (No response.)

17 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
18 is approved.

19 Item T-2 concerns Docket 18-0965,
20 which is an application for Telecommunications
21 Services Certificate. The Proposed Order denies the
22 application finding that the applicant failed to

1 provide sufficient information.

2 Are there any objections to approving
3 the Proposed Order?

4 (No response.)

5 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
6 is approved.

7 Items T-3 and T-4 concern Dockets
8 19-0192 and 19-0499, which are applications for
9 certificates of authority to provide
10 telecommunications services in Illinois.

11 The Proposed Orders grant the
12 applications finding that the applicants possess
13 sufficient resources and abilities to provide these
14 services.

15 Are there any objections to
16 considering these Orders together and approving the
17 Proposed Orders?

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Orders
20 are approved.

21 Moving on to our Water and Sewer
22 items.

1 Item W-1 concerns Docket 18-1449, which is a
2 rulemaking amending Part 656 to the Commission Rules
3 on qualifying infrastructure plant surcharge for
4 water and certain sewer utilities. The Proposed
5 Order adopts the amendments upon receiving
6 certification of no objections from the Joint
7 Committee on Administrative Rules.

8 Are there any objections to approving
9 the Proposed Order and authorizing submission of the
10 adopted amendments to the Secretary of State?

11 (No response.)

12 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the Order
13 is approved.

14 We have no Miscellaneous items. We
15 have no Petitions for Rehearing. We have one item
16 under Other Business. Item O-1 concerns Approval of
17 Batches, Contracts, and Confirmations under the
18 Adjustable Block Program.

19 Are there any objections to approving
20 the Program Administrator's submissions?

21 (No response.)

22 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none, the

1 submissions are approved.

2 That concludes our Public Utility
3 Agenda.

4 Judge Teague Kingsley, do we have any
5 other matters to come before the Commission today?

6 JUDGE TEAGUE KINGSLEY: No, Madam Chairman.

7 CHAIRWOMAN ZALEWSKI: Thank you.

8 Do we have -- any Commissioners have
9 any other business to discuss?

10 COMMISSIONER BOCANEGRA: I do. Thank you,
11 Chairman.

12 I just want to go ahead and welcome my
13 new legal intern Mathew Sphar who's here with us
14 today and my new legal and policy advisor Alejandro
15 Aixala. Welcome both of you, and we all look forward
16 to working with you.

17 Thank you.

18 CHAIRWOMAN ZAWESKI: Thank you.

19 Similarly, I'd like to introduce our
20 new intern from the University of Chicago who's
21 working on her Master of Public Policy, Salhah
22 Elaneizi. Welcome, and we're excited to be working

1 with you.

2 Do any of Commissioners have any other
3 business?

4 (No response.)

5 CHAIRMAN ZALEWSKI: Hearing none and without
6 objection, this meeting stands adjourned.

7 Thank you.

8

9 (Whereupon the above
10 matter was adjourned.)

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22